### **TOWN OF STONINGTON**

152 Elm Street • Stonington, Connecticut 06378
BOARD OF FINANCE MEETING
Wednesday, September 06, 2023
Police Department Meeting Room
7:15 PM

Call to order

Pledge of Allegiance

Comments from the Public

#### Approval of Previous Minutes

- 08/02/23 Minutes
- 03/28/23 Public Hearing Minutes
- 03/28/23 Special Meeting Minutes

#### Additional Appropriation Requests:

 Request from the Town of Westerly for \$84,000.00 from fund balance to fund the replacement of twelve (12) lead water services located on River Road in Pawcatuck.

#### Line-Item Transfer Requests: (action items) for fiscal 2022-2023

 Request from Finance Director for year-end line-item transfers to cover budget line-items with budget deficits for fiscal 22/23 (see attached schedule).

Correspondence: (none)

#### Liaison Reports

- CIP Liaison Report
- WPCA Liaison Report
- BOE Liaison Report
- Other Liaison Reports

Adjourn

RECEIVED FOR RECORD STONINGTON, OT.

23 SEP - 1 PH 1:37

SALLY DUPLICE TOWN CLERK

#### TOWN OF STONINGTON

# BOARD OF FINANCE MEETING MINUTES Stonington Police Department Meeting Room Wednesday, August 02, 2023 7:15 PM

A meeting of the Board of Finance was held on this date at the Stonington Police Department Meeting Room. Members present were Lynn Young, Michael Fauerbach, Deborah Norman, Chris Johnson, Bryan Bentz, and Chairman Tim O'Brien. Bob Statchen was not in attendance.

Mr. O'Brien called the meeting to order at 7:15 pm.

Public Comments: (none)

#### Previous Minutes:

The Chairman requested a motion to approve the May 04, 2023, June 07, 2023, and the June 22,2023 meeting minutes. Ms. Young motioned, and Mr. Johnson seconded it. The Chairman asked members for any discussion or corrections pertaining to the 5/4/23 minutes, there were no corrections or edits. The Chairman asked members for any discussion or corrections pertaining to the 6/7/23 minutes. It was noted that under public comments, one of the speakers' names was incorrect. The name was corrected to read Chris Smith, not Chris Donahue. Mr. Fauerbach also requested a couple of edits to the section "Discussion Items". He requested that the fifth word on line four be changed from, "development" to "design", the change was made. He also requested that clarification be made in in the second paragraph of this section, to clarify that the Board was concerned that a viable funding source for construction of the bike-path had not been identified or secured, and that was the reason the Board was against funding the design portion of the project, it was the boards position that it doesn't make sense to fund the design of a project if there are funds to build it. This edit will be made by the Finance Director. The Chairman asked members for any discussion or corrections pertaining to the 6/22/23 minutes, there were no corrections or edits.

The Chairman called for a vote, on motion to approve the minutes, the motion passed unanimously.

#### Additional Appropriation Requests:

The Chairman requested a motion to approve the additional appropriation request of \$2,500.00 from the Greater Mystic Chamber of Commerce, to fund the 50<sup>th</sup> anniversary celebration of the Mystic Aquarium, Ms. Young motioned, and Ms. Norman seconded it. Bruce Flax, the Chamber Director, along with the First Selectman, explained the purpose of his request and details surrounding the proposed event, and commented how successful a similar event was in fiscal 22/23.

Mr. Fauerbach raised a concern that this event is being billed as a celebration of the Mystic Aquarium rather than as a Town celebration. He voiced his concern about setting a precedent whereas anytime, any local business hit a similar milestone, they would request and expect a similar event in their honor. Mr. Fauerbach was on board with funding a "Mystic Celebration" but requested that it be more generic or wider in scope than celebrating mainly one specific organization.

Ms. Young, also expressed her concern about funding the request as well. Her concern, was one of mission creep, of the Town, through the "Outside Agencies" portion of the Human Services budget. She noted that, the Outside Agencies budget has increased dramatically over the last several years, and is concerned that the Town is getting over involved in funding non-Town organizations.

There was much discussion among the members, and between Mr. Flax and Ms. Chesebrough about the particulars of the planned event, primarily about the events proposed budget and other funding sources. The members in particular asked whether the Town of Groton and the Mystic Aquarium were contributing any funding towards the event. Mr. Flax responded that the Aquarium was contributing \$10,000.00, and that Groton was contributing donated police services.

The Chairman polled the members to get a sense of the Boards support for the request, all members present, with the exception of Ms. Young were in support of funding the event in principle, but the Chairman had concerns about funding it through an additional appropriation at this time. The Chairman asked the Director of Finance of other ways to fund the request. The Director of Finance responded that if the Chamber could wait until January of 2024 for payment, then a transfer of funds could probably be found somewhere in the existing budget, or the other option would be to fund the event by discounting or writing off charges for Stonington Police attendance at the event.

Ultimately, the Chairman communicated to Mr. Flax, that the Chamber has the support of the Board to fund the event for \$2,500.00, but the details of how and when will be determine at a later date.

#### Line-item Transfer Requests:

The Director of Finance presented the Director of Economic Development's request to transfer funds from the professional services account in the Planning Department's regular budget, to the Mystic Boat House Park project fund, to help fund an anticipated shortfall in funding for the park project. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the request, Mr. Fauerbach motioned, and Mr. Bentz seconded it. The Chairman asked the members if they had any questions or comments. Ms. Young inquired why the planning department had \$46,574.00 left in its operating budget. The Finance Director responded that the department was without a Town Planner for much of the year, and that the Director of Economic Development was engaged with so many other projects during the year, that they were unable to move forward on other initiatives.

The Chairman called for a vote on the motion, the motion passed unanimously.

The Director of Finance presented his request to transfer \$28,760.00 from the Accrued Leave Payout account in Administrative Services regular budget, to the Solid Waste Manager salary line-item in the solid waste department to cover the deficit to that line-item, due to the retirement of the prior Solid Waste Manager, and his payout of vacation and sick time. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the request, Ms. Young motioned, and Mr. Johnson seconded it. The Chairman asked the members if they had any questions or comments. There were no questions or comments.

The Chairman called for a vote on the motion, the motion passed unanimously.

#### Addition to the agenda:

At the request of the Director of Finance, the Chairman made a motion to add an additional transfer request to the agenda. Mr. Fauerbach made the motion, Ms. Young seconded the motion. The Chairman called for a vote, the motion, was unanimously approved.

The Public Works Director requested six line-item transfers totaling \$5,462.96, to cover deficits in certain line-items in the Public Works and Engineering budgets, for fiscal 22/23. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the request, Ms. Norman motioned, and Mr. Johnson seconded it. The Chairman asked the members if they had any questions or comments. The Public Works Director explained to the members the various reasons for the deficits in those particular accounts.

The Chairman called for a vote on the motion, the motion passed unanimously.

#### Bid Waiver Requests:

The BOE Director of Facilities requested a bid waiver to purchase a utility van from Gengras Ford, for \$50,103.10, for the newly hired HVAC technician that the district hired. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the request, Ms. Young motioned, and Mr. Bentz seconded it. The Chairman asked the members if they had any questions or comments. Mr. Fauerbach inquired whether this truck was fully funded in the CIP budget, the Director responded that it was, and that it is off the state bid list. Ms. Young noted that during the 23/24 budget presentation, a plow truck had been requested, but now that request has changed to a utility van. She asked the Director to explain the change in vehicle. The Director explained that with the hire of the new HVAC tech he needs a vehicle to house his tools as he moves around Town from location to location. He further explained that when the plow truck was requested, it was needed at that time, but through discussions with the Town's Public Works department, the DPW has agreed to take on some more plowing responsibilities for the BOE, lessening the BOE's need for the new plow truck.

The Chairman called for a vote on the motion, the motion passed unanimously.

The Public Works Director, and Deputy requested a bid waiver to purchase a mini-excavator from WI Clark, for \$115,233.00. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the request, Ms. Young motioned, and Mr. Fauerbach seconded it. The Chairman asked the members if they had any questions or comments. Ms. Young asked if it was off the state bid list. The Deputy

Director responded that it's not of the state bid list, but it is off a National Bid service called Sourcewell. Mr. Fauerbach asked if it was fully funded in the CIP budget, again the Deputy Director responded it was.

The Chairman called for a vote on the motion, the motion passed unanimously.

The Public Works Director and Deputy requested a bid waiver to purchase a Ford F550 from Gengras Ford, for \$83,654.20. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the request, Ms. Young motioned, and Mr. Bentz seconded it. The Chairman asked the members if they had any questions or comments. Ms. Young asked if it was off the state bid list, the Deputy Director responded it was. Mr. Fauerbach asked if it was fully funded in the CIP budget, again the Deputy responded that it was.

The Chairman called for a vote on the motion, the motion passed unanimously.

#### Correspondence:

- The Board received a thank you letter from Carole Nossek, the Chairperson of the Beautification Committee, thanking the Board for approving the funding for the Pawcatuck/Donohue Park lighting projects.
- The Board received two communications from the CT DOT regarding the Viaduct bridge replacement projects. The member discussed the funding of the Town's portion of the project, and the Chairman noted that the DOT has been very forthcoming and easy to work with, and he is confident that the Town's portion won't exceed the approximately \$1.5 million estimated by the DOT.
- A letter was received from the Director of Administrative Services, that due to performance, retention, and labor market pressures the Town is making salary adjustments to several positions for the 23/24 fiscal year. No action is being requested of the Board at this time, but come January the Board can expect some line-item transfer requests to fully fund these increases, which is anticipated will be funded from other line-item transfers, not requiring any additional appropriations.

#### Liaison Reports:

<u>Tax Collector Liaison Report:</u> Mr. Fauerbach noted that he heard from the Tax Collector that tax collections for the first month of fiscal 23/24, were excellent. Collections YTD are at 52.02%, 54.88%, and 81.45% for real estate, personal property, and motor vehicles, respectively.

BOE Liaison Report: Ms. Young noted that she had meet with the Superintendent and the BOE Finance Director, and that the BOE budget situation isn't as dire as first thought during the 23/24 budget process. The BOE Finance Director has been reviewing every aspect of the budget in detail and looking for possible savings throughout the budget. Ms. Young also noted how diligently the BOE and staff were working at making their budget work and commended them for their efforts.

Mr. Johnson asked Mr. Fauerbach if he had been in contact with the Bike Stonington group, regarding funding of the Bike Path project discussed at the June 07<sup>th</sup> BOF meeting. He responded that he hadn't, but Ms. Young commented that the Bike Stonington group had been in contact with her regarding funding of the project and she would provide Mr. Fauerbach with the group's contact info.

#### Adjournment:

The Chairman called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Young motioned, and Ms. Norman seconded. The motion passed unanimously, and the meeting was adjourned at 8:07 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

James Sullivan

Director of Finance

DATE:

August 29, 2023

TO:

Member's of the Town of Stonington Board of Finance

FROM:

Danielle Chesebrough, Stonington First Selectman

SUBJECT:

Westerly Water Request

The purpose of this memo is to summarize the request from Westerly Water to the Town of Stonington. Westerly Water approached the Town to discuss a potential partnership opportunitiy. In relation to the new development going in off of Mary Hall Road, Westerly Water is undertaking a project to upgrade an antiquated water main, and as part of that replace lead pipe and undertake roadway restoration work. Westerly has agreed to go beyond what is legally required, as it mutually benefits both our residents and their department. To accomplish this, Westerly is asking that the Town to financially participate. In summary:

- Westerly will be replacing the water main from Mark Street to Mary Hall Road to enhance water flow and quality. Westerly was only required to upgrade the pipe to an 8", but will instead be doing 12". In completing the tie-over to River Crest Rd and Mark St they will be eliminating the existing 6" water main, and replacing with a 12".
- As part of this project the Town of Stonington has requested a curb-to-curb mill and pave restoration (River Road) in lieu of a traditional trench repair (River Road will be milled and overlayed curb to curb delete) from Mark Street to Mary Hall Road. This will be paid for 50% by the developer and 50% by Westerly.
- There are approximately 27 residential services within the scope of work that will be renewed with new copper piping from the new 12" main to the individual shut-off valve at each affected property line. Out of the 27 water services, there are 12 lead laterals. If Westerly renews those 12 lead services, this will bring their current infrastructure for Stonington/Pawcatuck up to an 82% renewal rate. Renewing 1 lead water service costs the Utility owner approximately \$7,000, which would total approximately \$84,000 for the lead service portion of the project.
- Westerly is spending approximately \$350,000 overall toward this project and are looking for monetary assistance from the Town of Stonington so they can successfully complete this project as the overall scope of this work will ultimately benefit the residents of Stonington.
- In discussions, both parties felt that Stonington's possible participation was best suited to contributing towards the LEAD replacements. This would be \$84,000 and DPW has identified areas from within their budget for line-item transfers. The specific line-items will be shared during the meeting.

Thank you,

Danielle

### Town of Westerly Rhode Island

UTILITIES DEPARTMENT Max Sposato, Director of Public Works - Utilities



68 White Rock Road Westerly, RI 02891 TEL: (401) 348-2561 www.WesterlyRI.gov

8/23/2023

#### Memo:

#### River Rd Water Main Replacement from Mark St. to Marry Hall Rd.

The proposed water main project is approximately 1,800 feet of 12" Ductile Iron to replace the existing 6" Cast Iron. The hydrants within the scope of work will be replaced and connected to the new 12" main as well. The new 12" main will be tied over to Mark Street, River Crest and Mary Hall Rd creating a continual loop of the system. There are approximately 27 services within the scope of work that will be renewed with new copper piping from the new 12" main to the shut-off at each affected property line. Out of the 27 water services, there are 12 lead laterals. If we renew those 12 lead services, this will bring our current infrastructure for Stonington/Pawcatuck up to an 82% renewal rate. Renewing 1 lead water service costs the Utility owner approximately \$7,000, which would total approximately \$84,000 for the lead service portion of the project. The lead services are a direct health concern to residents, and we would be looking for monetary assistance from the Town of Stonington for this portion of the project as it would be of utmost benefit to their residents.

In extending the existing 12" River Road water main from Mark Street to Mary Hall Road will not only provide better water flow and quality but also an upgrade to fire demand. In completing the tie-over to River Crest Rd and Mark St we will eliminate the existing 6" water main that is approximately 100 years old. Due to the age of the water main, there have been several main breaks within this area. These main breaks are costly to repair, and they also impact the structural integrity of roads, sidewalks, and private properties. Most importantly, the risk of main breaks impacts safe drinking water. Upgrading the proposed water main and renewing the current services is of tremendous benefit to the residents within the area, the Town of Stonington, and the Westerly Water Department.

As part of this project, River Road will be milled and overlayed curb to curb from Mark Street to Mary Hall Road. The developer is responsible for half of that cost as their scope of work only affects half of the road. This cost is approximately \$100,000, and we would be responsible for 50% of that. This section was chipped sealed 3 years ago due to its condition and will be a near future concern for the Town of Stonington, therefore it would be beneficial.

In conclusion, The Town of Westerly is not working with a private developer to obtain a water main for a development. We are taking advantage of the opportunity to work together with the Town of Stonington to provide a better utility within both our infrastructure and be able to continue providing quality drinking water. The purpose of the upgrade is not necessary for compliance with the Department of Health and would not be considered a priority for the Town of Westerly, but due to the development purposed on Mary Hall Rd, working together with the developer would be in our best interest to have all aspects of this proposal completed together. This upgrade is going to cost the Town of Westerly approximately \$350,000. We are looking for monetary assistance from the Town of Stonington so we can successfully complete this project as the overall scope of this work will ultimately benefit the residents of Stonington.

Massimo Sposato
Max Sposato



## TOWN OF STONINGTON. FISCAL 22/23 YEAR END LINE ITEM BUDGET TRANSFER REQUESTS

a service and the service of the ser	The Managaran Control	DEBT	CREDIT	S. S
4000/11/2::::::===		I		
ACCOUNT NUMBER	1000///	ТО	FROM	COMMENTS
(ORG-OBJECT)	ACCOUNT NAME	(INCREASE)	(DECREASE)	COMMENTS
ADMIN SERVICES				
10121-80084	Clerical Salaries	0.00		
iT				
10122-80317	Telecommunications	4,200.00		
HUMAN RESOURCES	<del> </del>			
	Admin Took & Desfancional		4,200.00	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
10123-80101	Admin - Tech & Professional		4,200.00	
	<del>                                     </del>			
	ļ			
ASSESSOR		.		
10128-80056	Director of Assessment			
10128-80075	Clerical Salaries	0.00		<u> </u>
FINANCE				
10131-80012	Senior Accountant	2,473.00		
10131-80075	Clerical Salaries	4,829.00		
10131-80140	Postage	2,500.00		
		4,262.00		
10131-80156	Payroll Service	4,202.00		
<del></del>				
BOARD OF FINANCE				
10136-80197	Legal Support		19,719.00	
· ·	<u> </u>			
	İ			
PLANNING & ZONING COMM.	,			
10143-80160	Computerization		4,069.00	
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS				
		4,069.00		
10144-80141	Advertising	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
				<del></del>
		<del></del>		
NLAND WETLANDS COMM.				
10146-80141	Advertising	4,556.00		
SOLID WASTE				
10152-80075	Clerical Salaries			
10152-80267	SCRRA Receptacles (yellow bags)			
10102 00201				
DECDEATION				
RECREATION	Description Drogram Manager	3,182.00		
10173-80086	Recreation Program Manager			
			1	
10173-80174	Utilities	917.00		

		DEBT	CREDIT		
ACCOUNT NUMBER	4	ТО	FROM		
(ORG-OBJECT)	ACCOUNT NAME	(INCREASE)	(DECREASE)	COMMENTS	
		27,988.00	27,988.00	columns must equal	
HICTICICATION					
JUSTIFICATION					
Transfer accounts with surpl	uses to accounts with deficits	as of year end			·
Requested by:					
James Sullivan			9/1/2023		
Name			Date /		
					<u>.</u>
Director of Finance			1/ //	M	
Department Head		<u> </u>	Drector of Finance Ap	oproval	
•	•				
		•			
following to be completed by Financia	ce Department:				
Approved	•				
X(t)	1	,	2/4/2022		
anialla Chanabasumb First Calastras			9/1/2023 Date	,	
Sanielle Chesebrough, First Selectman		'	Jale		
Approved					
Board of Finance		Ş	9/6/2023	•	
			Meeting Date		
	•				
				-	
		(***)。1837年(1886年)。1975年			•
RECEIVED BY FINANCE:					
			•		
OURNAL ENTRY NUMBER					